
 1 

Grand Valley Metro Council 

Executive Committee Meeting 

 

Thursday, December 17, 2009 

12:00 pm 

 

Grand Valley Metro Council 

678 Front Ave. NW, Suite 200 

Grand Rapids, MI 

 

 

MEETING NOTES 
 

Present 

Jim Buck       City of Grandville 

Daryl Delabbio      Kent County 

George Heartwell      City of Grand Rapids 

Don Hilton, Sr.      Gaines Township 

Cindy Fox       Cascade Township 

Jim Miedema       Jamestown Township 

Cy Moore       Council Treasurer 

Alan Vanderberg      Ottawa County 

Rob VerHeulen      City of Walker 

 

 

Absent 

Rick Root       City of Kentwood 

 

Other 

Andy Bowman      Grand Valley Metro Council 

Leon Branderhorst      Grand Valley Metro Council 

Mike DeVries       Grand Rapids Township 

Denny Hoemke      Algoma Township 

Peter Haefner       Vredeveld Haefner 

Abed Itani       Grand Valley Metro Council 

Gayle McCrath      Grand Valley Metro Council 

Don Stypula       Grand Valley Metro Council 

Bill VerHulst       City of Wyoming 

Bob White       Kent County 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 2 

1. Call to Order 

 

The meeting was called to order at 12:15 pm by Chair Jim Buck. 

 

 

2. Approval of Minutes 

 

MOTION – Approval of GVMC Executive Committee Minutes of November, 2009.  

MOVE – VerHeulen.  SUPPORT - Delabbio.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

3. Finance – FY 2008-2009 Audit Report: Joint Review with GVMC Finance Committee 

 

Peter Haefner of Vredeveld Haefner reviewed the audit summary.  He said GVMC received 

an unqualified opinion, which is the highest possible. Under Findings the report listed 

Conditions:  Grand Valley Metropolitan Council does not have procedures in place to 

prepare financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

including procedures to record certain revenue and expenditure accruals and to present 

required financial statement disclosures.  The Recommendation:  Grand Valley Metropolitan 

Council’s system of control should be modified so that financial statements and disclosures 

can be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.   

 

The Management Response:  Grand Valley Metropolitan Council maintains its financial 

records throughout the year on a modified accrual basis of accounting and has determined 

that any benefits derived from preparing annual accrual basis financial statements and 

required disclosures would not exceed the costs to do so. 

 

Peter Haefner reviewed the Financial Statement which had a clean opinion.  He mentioned 

two items:  a portion of the year GVMC operates on estimated individual rate and it figures 

out the correct rate during the audit, and not all employees are tracking their time off through 

the system. The audit as a whole went very smoothly. 

 

Don Stypula stated that he was one of the people who’s time off was not being tracked and 

he would correct that immediately. 

 

A presentation of the reports will be made at the GVMC Board meeting, and the proper 

transmittal of the reports to the government will be made. 

 

MOTION – To Accept the FY 2008-2009 GVMC Single Audit Report and Financial 

Statements.  MOVE – Heartwell.  SUPPORT – Hilton.  MOTION CARRIED.   

 

 

4. Proposal by Grand Valley State University to Join the Metro Council as an Ex-Officio 

Member Organization 

 

Don Stypula reviewed GVSU’s request to become a member.  Jim Brown previously stated 

they couldn’t be offered regular voting membership, but a new class of higher education 



 3 

advisory committee could be made which would require amendment of the Bylaws.  Don 

asked the committee to move this to the full Council for their discussion and consideration 

and then back to the full Board to be voted on in February. 

 

George Heartwell asked if the total number of enrollment requirement referred to local 

enrollment or in total.  He doesn’t think a required enrollment number is necessary.   

 

Cindy Fox agreed.  She asked how options such as on-line learning, etc. would be considered  

 

Rob VerHeulen questioned what other colleges and universities would be included.  Is there 

a consensus to exclude private colleges?  What is the rational? 

 

Don Stypula stated he felt the more the better. 

 

Cindy Fox said if it was a non-voting membership, that was acceptable, but not if it would 

include voting rights. 

 

Daryl Delabbio asked how it fits into GVMC’s Mission Statement.  What is the rational?  

What would GVMC’s benefit be and what would their benefit be? 

 

Don Stypula indicated GVMC had a very strong partnership in a number of projects with 

GVSU. 

 

Rob VerHeulen asked how the Council would react to Spectrum Health wanting to join.  

Where does it stop?  We need to know where we want to be. 

 

Daryl Delabbio stated we need to talk about our relevance and what we should be doing. 

 

Al Vanderberg said if GVMU has a desire, why don’t we try it for a year and see how it goes.  

We can both reassess in one year. 

 

Daryl Delabbio said he would rather see GVMC expand the At-Large membership through 

the Bylaws than create an entirely new class of member. 

 

Don Hilton reported GVMC members all represent municipalities.  He would be careful in 

bringing in other institutions that might derail the intent.  If any institution was ever 

excluded, it would get the worst possible public relations spin. 

 

Jim Buck asked if Carl VerBeek should be at the February meeting to discuss the issue. 

 

Don Stypula stated the university wanted Tom Butcher to be their representative. 

 

Cindy Fox asked why GVSU would want a lawyer there rather than their President. 

 

Don Hilton suggested looking at the terms of office of the current At-Large members and 

considers GVSU for the next At-Large member. 

 



 4 

Daryl Delabbio stated an At-Large membership is a clean way to accomplish it. 

 

Jim Buck said he agreed with Al Vanderberg’s suggestion of bringing GVSU in under an 

advisory panel for a trial period.  Their relationship with GVMC goes back a long way. 

 

Don Stypula asked if it should go to the full Metro Council in January as an introduction. 

 

Al Vanderberg stated he would not bring it up until the Executive Committee votes on it. 

 

Jim Buck suggested the item be held over until the next meeting of the Executive Committee.  

Anyone who has questions, please get those to Don Stypula. 

 

 

5. Membership Retention 

 

Jim Buck discussed Kent County’s decision to approve only ½ of its membership dues 

(starting next fiscal year).  He discussed the report sent to all Kent County Commissioners on 

GVMC’s Mission and Vision.   There are other members asking for a 50% reductions to dues 

also.  GVMC needs to take a presentation to all of its members to show them what the 

Council is all about and what it has accomplished. 

 

Daryl Delabbio stated he was not sure what the intent was for approving only ½ of the 

membership dues.  Does that mean they will be members for only one half of the year or are 

they preparing for the 60 day requirement to withdraw entirely?  We have to have a dialogue 

here on what GVMC is about and how we fit in. 

 

Rob VerHeulen asked who needs to have the dialogue. 

 

Daryl Delabbio stated “We, as a Metro Council”. 

 

Cy Moore asked if there wasn’t a mandated 60 day notice requirement, would Kent County 

have withdrawn. 

 

Daryl Delabbio said they probably would have sent a notice of intent to withdraw in July. 

 

Don Stypula stated he can’t be at the Monday meeting at Jamestown when they will vote on 

GVMC membership.  No one has asked formally for a reduction on the dues like Kent 

County has. 

 

Cy Moore reported Don should let everyone know no “deal” has been made with Kent 

County.  They are in until September. 

 

Rob VerHeulen said it is critical we address this now.  Kent County has got to be a member.  

What do we need to do to serve them as expected?  We need the County Administrator to say 

it is critical to stay in the Metro Council and it has to happen quickly. 

 



 5 

Al Vanderberg stated Ottawa County is in the same place.  His observation is that GVMC 

has lofty ideal and principals.  REGIS and transportation weren’t our original core.  We need 

to revisit our goals.  GVMC should bring in an external facilitator and look at who we are.  

We should arm all our communities with the appropriate information, or it may breakup.   

 

Daryl Delabbio said we are at a critical juncture.  We need to make GVMC relevant. 

 

Al Vanderberg asked what the big picture is.  What is our reason for existence? 

 

Abed Itani reported the Federal Highway Administration called and asked what is going on 

and if we still have a valid process. 

 

Al Vanderberg said Land Use is the elephant in the living room.  The other is segregation.  

What do we need to work on as a region? 

 

Daryl Delabbio said WMSA, the Chamber, etc. all are doing their own thing.  This is the 

organization that should be doing the coordinating. 

 

Don Stypula suggested Lew Bender consider this during his 1/13 visit. 

 

Al Vanderberg reported if Lew Bender is used, it should be another day.  On the 13
th

 we need 

to stick to our targeted objective. 

 

 

6. Next Meeting – January 21, 2010 

 

 

7. Adjournment – 1:30 
 

 

MOTION – To Adjourn.  MOVE – VerHeulen.  SUPPORT – Delabbio.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 


